


 

 

 

RDA-2023-02 David Poppel 



















 

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

FROM 

4/12/2023 



 

  

    

 

                   

 

 
 

 
Commission Members:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff in Attendance:  
 
 
Public in Attendance:  
 
 
 
 
 

Governor Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c.30A, §20, dated March 10, 
2020, allows remote participation under this Order due to the Coronavirus State of Emergency.   
Topics may have been taken out of order according to posted agenda. 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
M. Swett called the meeting to order at 7:18 pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPLICATIONS 
RDA-2023-01 Walter Wilke- 83 Beaver Rd 
J. Prenosil found no issues. The trees would not be milled on site. 
 
MOTION by D. Cote to issue a negative 2 determination for RDA-2023-01. Seconded by K. 
Rosenbeck. No further discussion. 
  

M. Swett  Aye 

T. Barnes  Absent 

K. Rosenbeck  Aye 

D. Cote  Aye 

P. Topor  Absent 

Four in Favor. One  Absent. 

Approved 3/0/2. 

  

 

 

Mark Swett Chair  

Thomas Barnes Vice Chair , Absent 

Kristin Rosenbeck  

Dennis Cote  

Peter Topor Absent 

  

John Prenosil Conservation Agent 

Anna Marques Building Commissioner 

Kristen Jacobsen PCD & Conservation 
Admin 

  

Gary Buelow  

  

  

TOWN OF WARE 
Conservation Commission 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082 
413.967.9648 

 

Meeting Minutes from 
Wednesday, April 19, 2023  

Selectmen’s Conference Room, Town Hall 
 



Conservation Commission Meeting Minutes – 4/12/2023, Page 2 
 

 

  
 
    
ADMINSTRATION  

Approval of Meeting Minutes – March 8, 2023.  
 
MOTION by D. Cote to approve meeting minutes from March 8, 2023. Seconded by K. 
Rosenbeck. No further discussion. 
  

M. Swett  Aye 

T. Barnes  Absent 

K. Rosenbeck  Aye 

D. Cote  Aye 

P. Topor  Absent 

Four in Favor. One  Absent. 

Approved 3/0/2. 

  

 

 
 
 
Ware Mill Yard- Minuteman 
 
The board discussed the issues at the Minuteman and inquired about the conditions on the Special 
Permit. J. Prenosil noted that the erosion control is  in good shape. The board discussed the 
flexing of the steel plates on the right-of-way and that the project has ceased while they await 
funding. 
 
The board discussed the car in the building owned by the town and potential methods of removal. 
 
 
 
Maple Street- 
 
A.Marques and J. Prenosil met with Mr. Buelow at the location. The parcel was found to contain 
invasive plants. The board discussed the path, the storage of automobiles, the parcel being use,d 
and the alteration of vegetation. The board also noted that the storm water drains to the river 
and recommended installing a silt sock.  
 
The board discussed the possibility of isolating floor drains. 
 
The board seeks further information and documentation before issuing an order. 
 
 
 
 



Conservation Commission Meeting Minutes – 4/12/2023, Page 3 
 

 

Beaver Issue – 
 
Doane Road- Flooding issues. J. Prenosil sent an email to beaver solutions 
25 Crescent Street-  Same issues. J. Prenosil awaiting follow-up from Beaver Solutions. 
Beaver Lake- 42 Shoreline Drive- 2 Beavers have eaten trees and 3-trees are compromised.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
MOTION by T. Barnes to Adjourn at 7:42. Seconded by K. Rosenbeck. No further discussion. 
  

M. Swett  Aye 

T. Barnes  Absent 

K. Rosenbeck  Aye 

D. Cote  Aye 

P. Topor  Absent 

Three in favor.  Absent 

Approved 3/0/2. 

  

 

 
 
 
Next regular scheduled meeting is on May 10th, 2023. 
 
Minutes from March 8th, 2023 
Respectfully submitted by,  
 
 
Kristen Jacobsen 
Conservation Commission Administrator 

Minutes Approved on: ____________________ 
 

Swett   _________________________ 

Barnes   _________________________ 

Cote  _________________________ 

Rosenbeck _________________________ 

 

 



 

 

 

RIGHT OF 

FIRST REFUSAL 

WEBSTER RD 















































 

 

 

MINUTEMAN 

DISCUSSION  

MATERIALS 















 

 

 

APR/MAPLE STREET 

DISCUSSION 

MATERIALS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 Planning Board Members who were appointed to vote on this case. 

Approval Date: May 4, 2016 

Project Name: APR Towing 

Location of Project: 55 East Street 

Assessor’s 
Reference: 57-0-127 

Deed Reference: 12060/249 

Zoning District: I, Industrial 

Total Acreage: 2.85 

Type of Use: Towing business 

Building Area: 55,880 square feet 

Applicant: 
Gary Buelow 
55 East Street 
Ware, MA 01082 

Owner: 
118 Main Street LLC 
55 East Street 
Ware, MA 01082 

Plans Prepared by: Sketch by applicant 

Plans Dated: NA 

Application Date: March 30, 2016 

Public Hearing: May 4, 2016 

PB Members:1 Rick Starodoj, Chairman; Chris DiMarzio, Vice Chairman; Joe Knight, 
Fred Urban, and David Kopacz 

PB Action: Approved with conditions; see below. This Special Permit is 
approved under Section 2.5 of the Ware Zoning Bylaw. 

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts  01082 
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 186      f. 413.967.9627 

 

 CERTIFICATE OF DECISION  
SPECIAL PERMIT 

Case #: SP 2016-02 

Sent by Certified Mail 
 

# ____________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 



 
 

 
Certificate of Decision – APR Towing Special Permit  Page 2 of 4  
SP-2016-02  May 4, 2016 
 

 
Summary Description of Application: 
  

To operate a towing business at the site, which also houses other uses 
permitted by right in the Industrial district. Towing vehicles leave the premises 
several times a day as well as to make calls for service during the night. On 
average, 4 to 6 vehicles are brought back to the site each day. Of those, many 
are picked up by other carriers and leave the site the same day. Those that 
remain on the site are stored inside the garage or, rarely, are left outdoors in a 
designated storage area where they will be picked up by the customer or 
another company. APR has no intent of long term outside storage. 
 

 
Findings: After the public hearing duly noticed and held, the Ware Planning Board made 

the following findings as required by M.G.L. Chapter 40 A., Sec. 9 and Section 
7.2.4 of the Ware, MA., Zoning Bylaws: 

 
1. That the proposed use is in harmony with the general purpose and 

intent of the zoning bylaw, given the zoning is Industrial (I), the site 
is already developed with an industrial building, and there is 
capacity on the site and inside the building for the operation of a 
towing business without any detrimental impact to the health, 
safety, or welfare of the neighborhood or the Town; 

2. That the proposed use is compatible with the existing uses and 
development patterns in the neighborhood, given the entire area is 
within the Industrial district; 

3. That the proposed use will not create a nuisance to the 
neighborhood since there will be minimal outside storage of 
vehicles and the tow trucks will be stored in areas other than in 
front of the building; 

4. That the proposed use will not create undue traffic congestion nor 
unduly impair pedestrian safety and that the site provides safe 
vehicular and pedestrian circulation within the site given that it is a 
relatively minor use of the site; 

5. That the site provides adequate space onsite for the loading and 
unloading of vehicles being towed;  

6. That the proposed use will not overload any public water, drainage, 
or sewer system given that operation of a towing service does not 
consume water or generate wastewater, and that the site is not 
proposed to be modified in regard to impervious surfaces and thus 
will not contribute more to stormwater runoff entering the public 
drainage system than currently exists; and 

7. That the proposed use should not impact the environment in regard 
to erosion, siltation, or ground or surface water quantity or quality. 



 
 

 
Certificate of Decision – APR Towing Special Permit  Page 3 of 4  
SP-2016-02  May 4, 2016 
 

 
Based on these findings, the Ware Planning Board, as Special Permit Granting Authority 
pursuant to Section 7.2 of the Ware Zoning Bylaw, voted 5/0/0 to approve the Special 
Permit for Gary Buelow to operate a towing business at 55 East Street as previously 
described.  
 
Conditions:  

 
1. That towing vehicles not be left idling for undue amounts of time, in 

compliance with MGL Chapter 90 Section 16A; 

2. That outdoor lighting be shielded so as not to shine onto any abutting 
property;  

3. That any fluid leaks from vehicles used for the towing operation or that 
have been towed to the site be stopped and the spilled fluid cleaned up 
immediately in accordance with appropriate regulations;  

4. That compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations 
be maintained at all times, including but not limited to the Ware Zoning 
Bylaw, the Building Code, the Fire Code, and the Wetlands/Riverfront 
Protection Act; and 

5. That a site plan be submitted for review and approval for the expansion 
of the parking lot within three (3) months of the date of approval of this 
decision.  

 
 
 
 
Continued on the next page. 

  

































TomN or w#R2
Conservation Commission

126 Main Street, Suite A, Ware, Massachusetts  oio82
t. 413.967.9648 ext.117  f. 413.967.9627

conservation@townofware.com

June 8, 2oi6

Mr. Gary Buelow
118 Main Street Ware, LLC

55 East Street
Ware, MA oio82

Re: Work at 55 East Street

Dear Mr. Buelow,

At their meeting on May 11, 2oi6, the Ware Conservation Commission expressed growing concern over
the continued work at the above address including parking vehicles on unpaved surfaces.

Ngr##f°cobnet:a;tn#nufcotremdaat:otnhtosfs:theeuqnut#![[#°e%rn%:do#:#:#9e

cgoinsultant you retained for the requ.ired Notice of Jnten±_._

ln addition to the above, the Commission has yet to receive a wetland delineation plan, existing and

proposed elevations, a Notice of Intent application.

You are hereby advised to provide your consultant's information within two weeks of receipt of this
letter. The Commission will take this matter up again at their July 13, 2oi6 meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me at the above numbers.

Sincerely,

Judith  P.  8.  Mosso

Administrator

cc:             file

The Conservatiion Commission is the official agency charged with the protection Of our community's natural resources.



1

Jacobsen, Kristen

From: Tom Barnes <tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 7:49 AM
To: Barnes, Tom
Cc: Beckley, Stuart; Mark Swett (Con-Com); Jacobsen, Kristen
Subject: FW:Beulow
Attachments: Buelow 12 14 15.jpg; Buelow stop work order.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Ware organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

EVIDENCE THAT GOES BACK MANY YEARS ON APR 
 
From: Mosso, Judith Omosso@townofware.com) 
To: DKopacz@townofware.com; conservati6n.commission@comcast.net 
Cc: dencotel0@gmail.com; donna-rae.kenneally@wne.edu; stoneponiesl2@yahoo.com; ltx5@comcast.net; 
tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com 
 
Date: Monday, December 14, 2015 at 09:42 AM EST 
Possible tree clearing in river front at 55 East Main St, owner Gary Buelow. Map attached. 
Please check it out. 
-Judi 
 
From: Cullen, Karen 
Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 9:39 AM 
To: Mosso, Judith <JMosso@townofware.com> 
 
Subject: Buelow 
Karen M, Cullen, AICP 
Director of Planning & Community Development 
Town of Ware 
967-9648 ext.118 
Buelow property 
 



1

Jacobsen, Kristen

From: Barnes, Tom
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 11:44 AM
To: Jacobsen, Kristen
Cc: Beckley, Stuart; Barnes, Tom
Subject: FW: 55 East St -APR Towing

Hi Kristen  
 
Will you please print out my emails for our next Conservation Meeting on April 12 along with attachments and have 
them available for all members to review. Have one more I need send you.  
 
Thank you for all your help 
 
Tom Barnes  
Vice Chair 
Ware Conservation Commission  
www.townofware.com  
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 
 
 
 
-------- Original message -------- 
From: Tom Barnes <tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com>  
Date: 4/6/23 7:35 AM (GMT-05:00)  
To: "Barnes, Tom" <tbarnes@townofware.com>  
Cc: "Beckley, Stuart" <sbeckley@townofware.com>, "Mark Swett (Con-Com)" <ltx5@comcast.net>  
Subject: 55 East St -APR Towing  
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Ware organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

From: Mosso, Judith 0.mosso@townofware.com) 
To: conservation.commission@comcast.net; dencotelo@gmail.com,. DKopacz@townofware.com; 
stoneponiesl 2@yahoo.com; ltx5@comcast.net; tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com 
 
Date: Thursday, April 28, 2016 at 03:34 PM EDT 
 
Hi all' 
When the Commission last discussed this site, it was only about tree clearing. I just learned today that 
what has been cleared is now being paved. 
 
I have this on our 5/11 agenda, but Commission members should head out and take a look as an EO may 
be an option. But,I certainly do not have an NOI from Mr. Buelow or his representative. 
 



2

Judi Mosso 
 
Assistant to the Director 
Town of ware -Planning & Community Development I 126 Main Street I Ware, MA 01082 
t, 413.967.9648 xl20 I f. 413.967.9642 
Town Hall hours are M-F 8-4, 
www.townofware.com 
 



1

Jacobsen, Kristen

From: Tom Barnes <tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 7:49 AM
To: Barnes, Tom
Cc: Beckley, Stuart; Mark Swett (Con-Com); Jacobsen, Kristen
Subject: FW:Beulow
Attachments: Buelow 12 14 15.jpg; Buelow stop work order.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Ware organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

EVIDENCE THAT GOES BACK MANY YEARS ON APR 
 
From: Mosso, Judith Omosso@townofware.com) 
To: DKopacz@townofware.com; conservati6n.commission@comcast.net 
Cc: dencotel0@gmail.com; donna-rae.kenneally@wne.edu; stoneponiesl2@yahoo.com; ltx5@comcast.net; 
tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com 
 
Date: Monday, December 14, 2015 at 09:42 AM EST 
Possible tree clearing in river front at 55 East Main St, owner Gary Buelow. Map attached. 
Please check it out. 
-Judi 
 
From: Cullen, Karen 
Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 9:39 AM 
To: Mosso, Judith <JMosso@townofware.com> 
 
Subject: Buelow 
Karen M, Cullen, AICP 
Director of Planning & Community Development 
Town of Ware 
967-9648 ext.118 
Buelow property 
 



1

Jacobsen, Kristen

From: Tom Barnes <tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 6, 2023 7:27 AM
To: Barnes, Tom
Cc: Kristin Rosenbeck; Beckley, Stuart; Jacobsen, Kristen
Subject: 55 East Street - expansion of parking lot
Attachments: APR ARPIL 28 2016.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Town of Ware organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

 
Mosso, Judith <jmosso@townofware.com> 
To: 
conservation.commission@comcast.net 
, 
dencote10@gmail.com 
, 
DKopacz@townofware.com 
, 
stoneponies12@yahoo.com 
, 
ltx5@comcast.net 
, 
tbarnes_pps@yahoo.com 
 
 
 
Thu, Apr 28, 2016 at 3:35 PM 
 
  
 
  
 
From: Cullen, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 3:31 PM 
To: Mosso, Judith <JMosso@townofware.com> 
Subject: FW: 55 East Street - expansion of parking lot 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
From: Cullen, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 3:30 PM 
To: Chris Rice 
Cc: Stuart Beckley; Richard Starodoj (work) 
Subject: 55 East Street - expansion of parking lot 
 
  
 



2

Hi Chris, 
 
  
 
Today when I was out driving to another site I passed Gary Buelow’s site on East Street and saw a large excavator type 
machine working the site, moving rocks into a line along the top of the hill near the road within the area marked in red on 
the attached plan. It appears that the slope has been cut into and a parking area is being created within that area; a roller 
vehicle was working down there and it appeared that there was a dark crushed material that had been spread out over 
that area. 
 
  
 
§7.4.2 of the Zoning Bylaw requires a minor site plan review for the expansion of an existing parking lot not associated 
with increases in building size if the additional parking lot is between 2,000 and 4,000 square feet, and a major site plan 
review if it is larger than 4,000 square feet. Based on my rough estimation (from the attached plan), this additional parking 
area exceeds 4,000 square feet. 
 
  
 
I am requesting that you investigate this per §7.6 of the Zoning Bylaw, and should you find that indeed a site plan review 
is required, to inform Mr. Buelow of the fact. The site plan review application is available online, as is the zoning bylaw; 
Mr. Buelow should refer to §7.4 and will need to hire the appropriate professionals to prepare the site plan and he will 
need to file the application. 
 
  
 
The Planning Board has a public hearing on Wednesday May 4 on the request to operate a towing business on the 
property, and it is likely that the Board will include as a condition of approval of that special permit that the site comply with 
all local, state, and federal regulations, a standard condition on many special permits. This would, I believe, trigger the 
required site plan approval for the parking lot expansion, which means the operation of the towing business would not be 
in compliance with the special permit conditions. 
 
  
 
The bottom line is we want this property owner to respect and follow the processes which all property owners in Ware are 
bound by; we strive to treat everyone fairly and equally. 
 
  
 
Thank you, 
 
Karen 
 
  
 
Karen M. Cullen, AICP 
 
Director of Planning & Community Development 
 
  
 
Town of Ware 
 
126 Main Street 
 
Ware, MA 01082 
 
  
 
413-967-9648 ext. 118 
 



3

kcullen@townofware.com 
 
www.townofware.com 
 






